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What came first, great customers or a 98% customer satisfaction rating?

We never stop thinking about eggs. It's why everyone loves our eggs so much. Sparboe Farms has risen to become one of the largest egg producers and marketers of fresh |2 BOOKMARK o & & |
eggs in the United States. Sparboe Farms serves retail, wholesale and foodservice customers in 26 states. We value the opportunity to consult with our customers and achieve S
growth solutions that fit their business strategies. Sparboe Foods is a leading egg breaking and further processing company serving industrial and foodservice customers
throughout the United States with egg products and processing solutions. Sparboe is headquartered in Litchfield, Minnesota and has an Executive and Sales office in Wayzata,

Minnesota.
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% TARMS
Company Overview SPAW

Animal Care
SPARBOE FARMS SHELL EGGS
Sparboe Farms is the first egg producer in the nation to be certified by the U.S. Department of Agriculture's Processed Verified Program (PVP) for its
SPARBOE FOODS EGG PRODUCTS science-based animal welfare production guidelines. Very few egg producing companies could ever hope to accomplish this degree of certification,
verified by USDA every 6 months, providing our customers with the assurances of production process performance and monitoring verification from

the moment the egg is produced up to the moment it reaches our customer.
Sparboe Farms

Sparboe Foods At Sparboe, Hugo Medina, DVM, and Kristjan Bregendahl, Ph.D. in Poultry Nutrition, oversee our bio-security, food safety, animal care and health
AGRI-TECH programs.

Sustainability Responding To The 5 Freedoms

Animal Care

At Sparboe Farms, we ensure that our hens receive these 5 essential freedoms:

Mission & Values 1) Freedom from hunger and thirst: by ready access to fresh water and a diet to maintain full health and vigor.

Industry Associations 2) Freedom from discomfort: by providing an appropriate environment including shelter and a resting area.
CONTACT US 3) Freedom from pain, injury or disease: by prevention and rapid diagnosis and treatment.
4) Freedom to express normal behavior: by providing sufficient space, proper facilities and company of the animal's own kind.
TESTIMONIAL 5) Freedom from fear and distress: by ensuring that conditions and treatment allow hens to avoid mental suffering.
HOME

Click to download a copy of Sparboe Farms' production guidelines.

News & Events Careers Privacy Policy ~Terms of Use

© 2010 Sparboe Companies, LLC
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Sparboe Update
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Sparboe Farms Update on Undercover Video

On November 18, 2011, animal rights group Mercy for Animals released an undercover
video secretly recorded at several of our farms. These images depict activity completely at
odds with our animal welfare policies and do not represent our company or the high
standards that have always been a hallmark of our operations.

We accept responsibility and have taken aggressive action to rectify problems and to
ensure the well-being of our hens and the integrity of our product.

Message to Customers and Consumers from Sparboe Farms Owner
and President, Beth Sparboe Schnell

Since learning of animal mistreatment that has occurred at some
of our farms, we have initiated a series of actions aimed at
strengthening our animal care procedures and ensuring that our
chickens are treated humanely.

Regrettably, these incidents should never have happened in the
first place—but they did and we accept that responsibility. We
were not as vigilant as we should have been... (Read More)

Most Recent Activity:

Friday, November 25th: Two additional third-party on-site assessments were completed
today reviewing Sparboe Farms compliance with the corrective actions submitted to FDA.
One at our Goodell, Iowa location (inspection #1 in the November 16th letter) and the
other at our Hudson, Colorado location, (inspection #3).

Wednesday, November 23"9: Sparboe Farms appoints manager to newly created position
of Director of Compliance to lead the company’s efforts in designing and implementing
internal controls, policies and procedures relating to all laws, regulations, audits and
investigations as well as customer and third party guidelines. The position will also be
responsible for evaluating and improving Sparboe Farm’s monitoring and reporting
practices.

Tuesday, November 22nd: We have an agreement with Food Integrity Minnesota to
provide an outside, independent assessment of our facilities and protocols and to assist us
in responding to regulatory actions. As a first step, Food Integrity Minnesota was on-site
today at our Humboldt location assessing the corrective actions that were put into place for
inspection location #4 listed in the FDA November 16th letter.

Monday, November 21st: The initial third-party expert assessment of our compliance
corrective actions was completed today at our Prairie location. These assessments are for
our own verification that all corrective actions as noted in our response to locations #2 on
our November 16th letter from the FDA are indeed taking place. The assessments will
continue at the other four locations as we verify all of our corrective actions are in place
and being followed.

Sunday, November 20%: Sparboe Farms today engaged Olsson Frank Weeda Terman
Matz PC (OFWLaw) in Washington D.C. to assist Sparboe Farms’ FDA compliance team by

http://www.sparboeupdate.com/
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At Sparboe Farms, we follow a code of

conduct that ensures our hens receive

these five essential freedoms:

1. Freedom from hunger and thirst:
by ready access to fresh water and a diet to

maintain full health and vigor.

2. Freedom from discomfort:
by providing an appropriate environment including
shelter and a resting area.

3. Freedom from pain, injury or
disease:
by prevention and rapid diagnosis and treatment.

4. Freedom to express normal
behavior:
by providing sufficient space, proper facilities and
company of the animal's own kind.

5. Freedom from fear and distress:
by ensuring that conditions and treatment allow

hens to avoid mental suffering.

(More on Hen Care)

Sparboe Farms is the first egg producer
in the nation to be certified by the
USDA. (Read More)

The Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) Final Rule on egg safety requires
shell egg producers to... (Read More)

Owner and President Beth Sparboe
Schnell responds to the undercover
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providing oversight and direction as Sparboe management enhances our food video footage. (Read More)
safety compliance programs. At OFWLaw, their Agricultural team members’ focus on FDA

and USDA-FSIS regulatory matters relating to meat and poultry production and FDA

regulated products and related food safety issues. This Sparboe Farms Compliance team

together with OFWLaw has developed an initial corrective action log for responding to the

FDA warning letter.

Saturday, November 19t:Sparboe Farms held a media
briefing in Minneapolis toannounce the formation of a
Sustainability Task Force that is charged with reviewing all
current company practices in the areas of food safety, animal
care and sustainability. The task force will also develop
additional best practices in those areas for all of the company’s
production and processing facilities. Media from television,
print and radio attended.

Friday, November 18t": In addition to the four employees Beth Sparboe Schnell with
already fired, management changes have taken place, and our
investigation is ongoing.

Family Announces Creation of

Sustainability Task Force

Thursday, November 17th: In a conference call with the
FDA, Sparboe learned that some of the corrective actions taken related to 483s were
insufficient. Immediate steps were initiated to rectify.

Wednesday, November 16™: FDA’s Minneapolis District Office issues warning letter
recapping violations found during inspections conducted between April 25 and July 22 at
five Sparboe Farms. Sparboe responded to each 483 within 15 days as required,
documenting implementation of corrective actions.

For more information regarding the Egg Safety Rule and 483s, please click here

Timeline of Responses

November 1st: Sparboe Farms learns of alleged animal abuse from ABC News and
immediately asks for verification. Internal incident team is formed. Internal investigation
launched.

November 3rd: Sparboe again asks ABC News for details and complete videos. ABC News
promises verification. Farm procedure audit begins. Farm managers reinforce animal
welfare policies on site at all facilities.

November 4th: ABC News supplies still photos taken from video clips. Sparboe incident
team begins to analyze photos to identify individuals and farm locations involved. Sparboe
makes additional request to access all video for its investigation. Incident team seeks
independent audit of facilities and review of animal welfare policies.

November 5th: ABC News is again asked for video of alleged abuse. Third party auditor is
identified. Plans are made for incident team to assemble November 6th.

November 6th: Sparboe incident team assembles and begins to plan procedural audit and
action steps.

November 7th: Incident team meets on-site at one of the farms that can be identified in
still photos. ABC News is again asked for video to verify locations and workers shown in
videos. Partial video clips released to Sparboe Farms the afternoon of November 7th.

November 8th: Third party audit proceeds at farm in question. Sparboe Farms asks ABC
News to confirm if additional video exists, beyond what was already shared, and also
requests name of organization responsible for undercover filming. Employees in videos
conclusively identified and fired. USDA is notified of undercover video.

November 9th: Positively identified employees in the video interviewed and terminated.
Incident team continues to interview other employees potentially involved or having
knowledge of those involved. Crews on farms reconfigured to remove individuals who may
have been involved. Sparboe Farms issues statement to ABC News.

http://www.sparboeupdate.com/ Page 2 of 3
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November 10th: Audit results received - Sparboe Farms found to be in full compliance
with animal welfare policies.

ABC News crew, including Brian Ross, tours facility (barn housed with hens and processing
floor) to document conditions inside Sparboe barns. Cameras allowed. Crew is required to
sign biosecurity form and is accompanied by a production manager. ABC News confirms
Mercy for Animals as its source for the undercover videos.

November 11th: Sparboe management notifies employees at all locations of ongoing
investigation and potential for media coverage.

November 13th: Began re-training all barn workers, including production leads,
production managers, bird crew, crew leaders, pullet managers and pullet barn workers in
proper animal care procedures, including bird handling, euthanasia, food, water, daily
inspection, health and veterinary care.

November 14th: Sparboe Farms reminds employees of confidential hotline for calling in
concerns anonymously, including violations of animal welfare policies.

In response to Sparboe’s most recent request to see all available video, ABC News will not
provide and directs company to Mercy for Animals.

November 15th: Written request submitted to Mercy for Animals for complete, unedited
versions of all recordings.

Wednesday, November 16t": FDA’s Minneapolis District Office issues warning letter
recapping violations found during inspections conducted between April 25 and July 22 at
five Sparboe Farms. Sparboe responded to each 483 within 15 days as required,
documenting implementation of corrective actions.

2011 Sparboe Companies, LLC visit www.sparboe.com
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Sparboe-USDA Certified

Sparboe Farms is the first egg producer in the nation to be certified by the U.S.
Department of Agriculture’s Processed Verified Program (PVP) for its science-based animal
welfare production guidelines.

The USDA Process Verified Program uses the International Organization for
Standardization’s ISO 9000 series standards for documented quality management systems
as a format for evaluating program documentation, ensuring consistent auditing practices,
and promote international recognition of audit results.

Our facilities are audited by the USDA every 6 months, providing our customers with the
assurances of production process performance and monitoring verification from the
moment the egg is produced up to the moment it reaches our customer.

The Process Verified Program assures customers and consumers of Sparboe Farms’ ability
to provide consistent quality eggs through a written and verifiable production management At Sparboe Farms, we follow a code of

program. This science- based program is confirmed through semi-annual audits by federal condugt that ensures our hens receive
inspectors these five essential freedoms:

1. Freedom from hunger and thirst:
by ready access to fresh water and a diet to
maintain full health and vigor.

2. Freedom from discomfort:
by providing an appropriate environment including
shelter and a resting area.

3. Freedom from pain, injury or
disease:
by prevention and rapid diagnosis and treatment.

4. Freedom to express normal
behavior:
by providing sufficient space, proper facilities and
company of the animal's own kind.

5. Freedom from fear and distress:
by ensuring that conditions and treatment allow

hens to avoid mental suffering.

(More on Hen Care)

Sparboe Farms is the first egg producer
in the nation to be certified by the

USDA. (Read More)

The Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) Final Rule on egg safety requires
shell egg producers to... (Read More)

Owner and President Beth Sparboe
Schnell responds to the undercover
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Letter

Message to Customers and Consumers from
Beth Sparboe Schnell

Since learning of animal mistreatment that has occurred at some
of our farms, we have initiated a series of actions aimed at
strengthening our animal care procedures and ensuring that our
chickens are treated humanely.

Regrettably, these incidents should never have happened in the
first place—but they did and we accept that responsibility. We
were not as vigilant as we should have been in monitoring our

care code of conduct. However, we want to assure you that we
are working around the clock to take corrective measures by enhancing our animal care
policies and procedures to make our company better.

Before I go into some of the specifics of what we're doing, I want to take this opportunity
to thank our customers and consumers who took the time to share their concerns with us.
I've read all of your comments, and want you to know I take full responsibility for
correcting mistakes that have been made. I helped my father build this business, and I'm
committed to doing whatever it takes to support the good work of the vast majority of our
employees who strive to do the “right thing” every day.

Immediately upon learning of the undercover video, we launched a comprehensive
investigation which identified four employees who were complicit in the disturbing activity.
Because we have zero tolerance for animal abuse, the four have been terminated. A
production manager also has been relieved of his duties.

Our investigation is ongoing and if any additional employees are involved, they will be held
accountable.

Because we are intent on ensuring this never happens again, we have immediately
engaged in the following:

1.) We have created a Sustainability Task Force that I will personally lead. The task
force will be charged with reviewing and improving all current company practices for
production and processing facilities in the areas of food safety, animal care and
sustainability. The task force will include a national expert on food safety, one on animal
care and a customer/consumer representative We are increasing our resources with
additional employees for our animal care, food safety and compliance staffs to
ensure that we do everything possible to enhance and strengthen our procedures in these
areas.

2.) All bird-handling employees have been re-trained, and will receive additional
training over time as we enhance our procedures and continually reinforce our
uncompromising expectations for animal care.

3.) We will conduct further audits of ourselves. Last week, Sparboe Farms participated
in and passed four third-party animal welfare audits. This week, we have engaged
additional experts to conduct assessments of the corrective action plans for our FDA
food safety compliance procedures.

http://www.sparboeupdate.com/letter-from-beth-schnell/
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At Sparboe Farms, we follow a code of

conduct that ensures our hens receive

these five essential freedoms:

1. Freedom from hunger and thirst:
by ready access to fresh water and a diet to

maintain full health and vigor.

2. Freedom from discomfort:
by providing an appropriate environment including
shelter and a resting area.

3. Freedom from pain, injury or
disease:
by prevention and rapid diagnosis and treatment.

4. Freedom to express normal
behavior:
by providing sufficient space, proper facilities and
company of the animal's own kind.

5. Freedom from fear and distress:
by ensuring that conditions and treatment allow

hens to avoid mental suffering.

(More on Hen Care)

Sparboe Farms is the first egg producer
in the nation to be certified by the

USDA. (Read More)

The Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) Final Rule on egg safety requires
shell egg producers to... (Read More)

Owner and President Beth Sparboe
Schnell responds to the undercover
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4.) We will promote our anonymous employee hotline more widely to help foster a video footage. (Read More)
culture that encourages employees to volunteer information if they observe violations of
our animal care code of conduct.

Regarding the FDA warning letter from November 16th, we are working closely with the
agency to rectify the observations as noted on FDA form #483. The FDA's inspections last
spring were the first to be conducted on Sparboe Farms since the FDA became responsible
under the new Egg Safety Rule. We incorrectly assumed that we had sufficiently responded
to the observations noted. We now know we were wrong and we had not supplied the detail
that they needed. We are currently working 24/7 to provide the FDA with the necessary
detail.

We understand that animal care and food safety are paramount to our customers and
consumers. We focus on continuous improvement in every area of our business because we
want to be an egg farmer that is truly “best in class.” To that end, we are making a
concerted effort to be more transparent as our task force conducts its review and issues its
recommendations. I invite our customers, consumers and the media to follow our progress.

Finally, I want to assure you that you can continue to have every confidence in the safety
and integrity of our products. At Sparboe Farms we are proud of our long and unwavering
tradition of offering the highest quality egg products. And we are committed to always
doing what'’s right and conducting business in a socially responsible manner.

Beth Sparboe Schnell

2011 Sparboe Companies, LLC visit www.sparboe.com
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Contact Us

Contact Us

First Name: (required)
Last Name: (required)

Your Email (required)

Address:

Address2:

At Sparboe Farms, we follow a code of
conduct that ensures our hens receive
these five essential freedoms:

City: 1. Freedom from hunger and thirst:
by ready access to fresh water and a diet to
maintain full health and vigor.

2. Freedom from discomfort:
by providing an appropriate environment including

State:
shelter and a resting area.
3. Freedom from pain, injury or
Zip: disease:
by prevention and rapid diagnosis and treatment.
4. Freedom to express normal
behavior:

Comment: by providing sufficient space, proper facilities and

company of the animal's own kind.

5. Freedom from fear and distress:
by ensuring that conditions and treatment allow
hens to avoid mental suffering.

(More on Hen Care)

Sparboe Farms is the first egg producer
Send in the nation to be certified by the
USDA. (Read More)

The Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) Final Rule on egg safety requires
shell egg producers to... (Read More)

Owner and President Beth Sparboe
Schnell responds to the undercover
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Media Inquiry

Media Inquiry

We are sensitive to media deadlines and will respond to inquiries quickly. To improve
efficiency in our response, please use the following form.

First Name:

Last Name:

Media Outlet:

Deadline:

At Sparboe Farms, we follow a code of
conduct that ensures our hens receive
these five essential freedoms:
Phone: 1. Freedom from hunger and thirst:
by ready access to fresh water and a diet to

maintain full health and vigor.

Email: 2. Freedom from discomfort:
by providing an appropriate environment including
shelter and a resting area.

. 3. Freedom from pain, injury or
Reason for Inquiry: disease:

by prevention and rapid diagnosis and treatment.
4. Freedom to express normal

behavior:

by providing sufficient space, proper facilities and

company of the animal's own kind.

5. Freedom from fear and distress:
by ensuring that conditions and treatment allow
vz hens to avoid mental suffering.

(More on Hen Care)

Send

Sparboe Farms is the first egg producer
in the nation to be certified by the

USDA. (Read More)

The Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) Final Rule on egg safety requires
shell egg producers to... (Read More)

Owner and President Beth Sparboe
Schnell responds to the undercover
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Food and Drug Administration

} Minneapolis District Office

Central Region

250 Marquette Avenue, Suite 600
Minneapolis, MN 55401
Telephone: (612) 334-4100

FAX: (612) 334-4142

November 16, 2011

WARNING LETTER

Via UPS Overnight Refer to MIN 12 - 09

Beth Sparboe Schnell

Owner

Sparboe Farms, Inc. / Prairie Complex
23577 MN Highway 22

Litchfield, Minnesota 55355

Dear Ms. Schnell:

The United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) inspected your shell egg
production facilities located at:

1140 Timber Drive, Goodell, IA 50439 on April 25-29, 2011 (Inspectionl);
65018 U.S. Highway 12, Litchfield, MN 55355 on April 25-May 5, 2011 (Inspection 2)
6339 Weld County Road 47, Hudson, CO 80642 on May 9-12, 2011 (Inspection 3};
2088 120t Street, Humboldt, IA 50548 on June 20-21, 2011 (Inspection 4}; and
1979 Iowa Avenue, Britt, IA 50423 on July 20-22, 2011 (Inspection 5).

We found that the above-listed facilities have serious violations of the Prevention of
Salmonella Enteritidis (SE) in Shell Eggs During Production, Storage, and
Transportation regulation (the shell egg regulation), Title 21, Code of Federal
Regulations, Part 118 (21 CFR 118). The failure to adequately implement the
requirements in 21 CFR 118 causes your shell eggs to be in violation of section
361(a) of the Public Health Service Act (the “PHS Act”), Title 42, U.S.C. section
264(a). In addition, these violations render your shell eggs adulterated within the
meaning of section 402(a)(4) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (the
“FFD&C Act”), 21 U.S.C. section 342(a)(4), in that they have been prepared, packed,
or held under insanitary conditions whereby they may have become contaminated
with filth, or whereby they may have been rendered injurious to health. You can find
the FFD&C Act, the PHS Act, and the shell egg regulation through links on FDA'’s
home page at www.fda.gov.

The significant violations, with references to each specific farm, are as follows:

1. You failed to have and implement a written SE prevention plan that is specific
to each farm where you produce eggs, as required by 21 CFR 118.4.
Specifically, your written SE prevention plans obtained during Inspection 1
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Beth Sparboe Schnell
November 16, 2011

in Goodell, IA, Inspection 2 in Litchfield, MN, Inspection 3 in Hudson, CO,
Inspection 4 in Humboldt, IA, and Inspection 5 in Britt, IA, are not specific to
each farm.

. You induced molt in a flock but then failed to perform environmental testing

for SE in the poultry house at four to six weeks after the end of the molting
process as required by 21 CFR 118.5(b). Specifically, during Inspection 2 in
Litchfield, MN, investigators noted that you failed to environmentally test the
poultry house (house #9) four to six weeks after the end of the molting
process. Your written response dated May 25, 2011, states that your SE
prevention plan calls for environmental testing four to six weeks after the end
of the molting process; however, you did not provide any records to
demonstrate that environmental testing did, in fact, take place in this
circumstance. To the extent that you are asserting that environmental testing
was performed four to six weeks after the end of the molting process in the
poultry house (house #9), you are required under 21 CFR 118.10(a)(3)(vi) to
maintain records documenting the results of the SE testing that is required by
21 CFR 118.5.

You failed to use appropriate methods to achieve satisfactory rodent control
when monitoring indicated unacceptable rodent activity within a poultry
house, as required by 21 CFR 118.4(c)(1).

e During Inspection 1 at Goodell, 1A, it was noted that when your monitoring
indicated unacceptable rodent activity, appropriate measures were not
used to achieve satisfactory rodent control. Specifically, your Biosecurity
Program and Procedures Manual Version #4, dated September 2009,
states the rodent index should be lower than 0.5. A review of the records
for the previous ten months (June 2010 — April 2011) found the rodent
index exceeded 0.5 on most of the dates when it was calculated; however,
your records indicate that neither your firm nor your contracted pest
control company took remedial action to achieve satisfactory rodent
control. Your written response dated May 18, 2011, stated that a rodent
index of 0.5 was “a goal, not the starting point for our evaluation,” and
that adjustments on the rodent control index have been done based on
historical trends for the Goodell facility with a new rodent index of 3.
However, your response did not indicate that you had concluded that a
rodent index of 3 represents an acceptable level of rodent activity, nor did
it indicate any basis for such a conclusion. Changing threshold levels to
reflect historical levels of rodents is not an acceptable correction. You are
required to use appropriate methods to achieve satisfactory rodent control
when your monitoring indicates unacceptable rodent activity.

e During Inspection 2 at Litchfield, MN, it was noted that your Biosecurity
Program and Procedures Manual Version #4, dated September 2009,
states the rodent index should be lower than 0.5. Between July 9, 2010,
and April 22, 2011, the rodent index continuously ranged from .55 (99
rodents caught) to 2.61 (471 rodents caught), which exceeded your rodent
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rodents caught) to 2.61 (471 rodents caught), which exceeded your
rodent index of 0.5, and thus required corrective action according to the
pest control section of your firm’s SE prevention plan. However, no
corrective actions were taken to achieve satisfactory rodent control. Your
written response dated May 25, 2011, stated that you will change the
rodent index threshold level at which you will take corrective action.
However, your response did not indicate what your revised rodent index
threshold level would be, nor did it indicate that the revised rodent index
would reflect an acceptable level of rodent activity. Changing threshold
levels in light of historical levels of rodents is not an acceptable
correction. You are required to use appropriate methods to achieve
satisfactory rodent control when your monitoring indicates unacceptable
rodent activity.

¢ During Inspection 4 at Humboldt, IA, it was noted that your SE plan
stated that action would be taken if a rodent index of 4 was reached.
Your rodent monitoring logs indicated that the rodent index exceeded 4
on June 14, 2011 (houses #8E, #5W, and #7W), May 31, 2011 (houses
#5W and #8W), May 24, 2011 (house #5E), May 17, 2011 (house #8E]),
and May 10, 2011 (house #5W). However, no corrective actions were
documented. Your written response dated July 12, 2011, stated that in
the future, corrective actions will be implemented at a rodent index of 4.
We note that, at the time of the inspection, your SE plan stated that you
follow FDA'’s Industry Guidance for rodent indexing. This statement is in
conflict with your threshold of a rodent index of 4, which is not
consistent with FDA’s Draft Guidance for Industry: Prevention of
Salmonella Enteritidis in Shell Eggs During Production, Storage, and
Transportation, which we believe to be the Industry Guidance that is
referenced in your SE plan. Please note that whatever monitoring
method you use, you are required to use appropriate methods to achieve
satisfactory rodent control when your monitoring indicates unacceptable
rodent activity.

e During Inspection S at Britt, IA, it was noted that when monitoring
indicated unacceptable rodent activity, appropriate methods were not
used to achieve satisfactory rodent control. Specifically, on November 2,
2010, you recorded a rodent index of 4.33 for house #3. Although your
SE plan as of November 2, 2010, did not require action at any rodent
index level, your Britt Complex Manager acknowledged during the
inspection that a rodent index of 4.33 indicated a problem that needed to
be addressed. However, your records indicate that no action was taken
to address this unacceptable rodent activity.

4. You failed to remove vegetation and debris outside a poultry house that may
provide harborage for pests, as required by 21 CFR 118.4(c)(3). Specifically,
during Inspection 5 at Britt, IA, FDA investigators observed a pile of lumber
between houses #1 and #2, as well as thick grass standing approximately
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4.5 feet tall between houses #1 and #2. FDA investigators observed a rodent
run out from under the pile of lumber.

You failed to have and implement a written SE prevention plan that includes
an appropriate monitoring method for flies and you failed to use appropriate
methods to achieve satisfactory fly control when monitoring indicated
unacceptable fly activity within a poultry house as required by 21 CFR
118.4(c)(2).

e During Inspection 1 in Goodell, IA, it was noted that, though you use fly
cards for monitoring, an unacceptable level of fly activity had not been
determined and was not addressed in the Salmonella Prevention Program
or your firm’s procedures as required under 21 CFR 118.4(c}(2). In your
written response dated May 18, 2011, you stated that you updated the
Goodell SE Prevention Program to specify fly monitoring activity and set
a threshold with corrective actions when those are reached. However,
your written response did not indicate what the threshold is for
unacceptable fly activity, nor did it indicate what the corrective actions
are.

¢ During Inspection 2 in Litchfield, MN, it was noted that your SE
prevention plan references your Biosecurity Program and Procedure
Manual #4, which requires fly control procedures in writing; however,
there are no written procedures for monitoring of flies and you do not
determine if fly activity is acceptable or unacceptable, as required under
21 CFR 118.4(c)(2). Your written response dated May 25, 2011, stated
that you will include a written Fly Control Program with threshold levels
and take corrective actions when necessary. However, your response did
not indicate what the threshold levels will be or what the corrective
actions will be.

e During Inspection S in Britt, IA, it was noted that the presence of flies is
not monitored by appropriate monitoring methods as required under 21
CFR 118.4(c)(2). Specifically, your fly index action level of 300 is based
on historical levels of flies, as opposed to being based on a determination
of what level of fly activity is unacceptable.

6. You failed to procure pullets that are SE monitored or to raise pullets under

SE monitored conditions, as required by 21 CFR 118.4(a). Specifically, you
failed to comply with the requirement in 21 CFR 118.4(a)(2) that the pullet
environment be tested for SE when pullets are 14 to 16 weeks of age, and
that you have and implement a written SE plan that calls for such testing.
You also failed to maintain records documenting that pullets were raised
under SE monitored conditions, as required by 21 CFR 118.10(a)(2).

¢ During Inspection 2 in Litchfield, MN, it was noted that house #8 was
populated on or around February 12, 2011, with pullets that were never
environmentally monitored. Your written response dated May 25, 2011,
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states that you will revise your SE prevention plan to state that “pullets”
(which we understand to mean the pullet environment) will be tested for
SE when pullets are between 14 and 16 weeks of age. We will verify this
correction at our next inspection.

¢ During Inspection 4 in Humboldt, IA, it was noted that house #9W was
populated on or about September 26, 2010, with pullets that were never
environmentally monitored. We acknowledge that, during the course of
Inspection 4, you corrected your SE plan to call for pullet environment
testing at 14-16 weeks.

¢ Your SE prevention plan for all five farms stated that environmental
sampling of pullets is done at 12 weeks of age. Your written response
dated May 25, 2011, stated that corrective actions were being
implemented for all pullet flocks to be environmentally monitored
between 14 to 16 weeks of age; however, FDA observed that the SE
prevention plans of the farms that were subsequently inspected had not
been revised to reflect this correction. We acknowledge that during
Inspection 4 in Humboldt, IA, you corrected that farm’s SE prevention
plan in the presence of FDA investigators to call for pullet environment
testing at 14-16 weeks.

¢ During Inspection 2 in Litchfield, MN, your records indicated that two of
your poultry houses had been populated with pullets that were
environmentally monitored when they were approximately 19 weeks of
age. Your written response dated May 25, 2011, stated that you do not
test any of your pullets at 19 weeks of age, and that pullets at this age
are already at the layer facility. Your response seems to indicate that a
recordkeeping error had been made. Under 21 CFR 118.10(a)(2), you
must maintain records documenting that pullets were raised under SE
monitored conditions, including environmental testing records for
pullets.

7. You failed to maintain practices that will protect against cross-
contamination when persons move between poultry houses as required by
21 CFR 118.4(b)(3). Specifically, during Inspection 1 in Goodell, IA,
management stated that employees move between SE-positive houses and
SE-negative houses without taking precautions that would prevent cross-
contamination, and FDA investigators found that your SE prevention
practices failed to address cross-contamination from personnel movement
between poultry houses. Your written response dated May 18, 2011, stated
that personnel working at Goodell will institute immediately a new series of
steps to ensure all precautions have been taken to prevent cross-
contamination between SE-positive and SE-negative houses including
powder foot baths and hand sanitizers when exiting SE positive houses.
You further stated that this correction had been included in the updated
Goodell SE Prevention Program. We will verify this correction at our next
inspection.
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You failed to prevent stray poultry, wild birds, cats, and other animals from
entering poultry houses as required by 21 CFR 118.4(b)(4).

e During Inspection 1 in Goodell, IA, a wild bird was observed in house #1.
Bent, broken, or separated bird netting was observed in five of the
poultry houses, and broken louvers were observed on ventilation fans in
one house. Your written response dated May 18, 2011, stated that all
bird netting to prevent the introduction of wild birds and all louvers on
ventilation fans would be immediately repaired. We will verify these
corrections at our next inspection.

¢ During Inspection 3 in Hudson, CO, a hole was observed in the bird
netting located along the northwest corner eave of layer house #4 South.
The hole measured approximately 48 inches in length and 24 inches in
width. We acknowledge that the hole was repaired during the course of
the inspection.

You failed to sample the environment using a sampling plan appropriate to
the poultry house layout as required by 21 CFR 118.7(a). Specifically, at all
five of your facilities you did not sample your manure pits, though they
appeared to be accessible and were, in fact, accessed by FDA during
Inspection 1 (Goodell, IA) and Inspection 2 (Litchfield, MN, where FDA'’s
environmental sampling found the presence of SE, as discussed below).
Instead of sampling your manure pits, you sampled only your egg belts.
Additionally, at Goodell, IA, you only sampled from the two middle egg belts.
Your written response dated May 18, 2011, stated that Goodell’s updated SE
Prevention Program “has addressed the sampling method and follows FDA
August 2010 guidelines and provided an optimal method in case manure
sampling cannot be accomplished.” We will verify this correction at our next
inspection.

You failed to maintain records documenting rodent and other pest control
measures as required by 21 CFR 118.10(a)(3)(ii). Specifically, during
Inspection 3 in Hudson, CO, FDA investigators found that, as of May 9,
2011, you had not maintained any fly monitoring documentation. We
acknowledge that your Production Manager stated that documentation
began during the course of the inspection, and one monitoring log was
provided. We will verify your continued compliance at our next inspection.

You failed to include the date and time of the activities reflected in your
records, as required by 21 CFR 118.10(b)(2). Specifically, during Inspection
5 in Britt, IA, FDA investigators observed that your House Fly Activity Log,
your Fly Control Logs, and your Rodent Index Monitoring Records did not
document the times of the activities that the records reflect. We
acknowledge that during the course of the inspection, you revised your
House Fly Activity Log and your Fly Control Logs to include a space to
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record the time of the activity. We will verify your corrective actions at our
next inspection.

You failed to provide the location of your farm on all of your required
records, as required by 21 CFR 118.10(b)(1). Specifically, during Inspection
3 in Hudson, CO, records related to rodent monitoring and refrigeration
monitoring did not contain the location of your farm.

You failed to include in your required records the signature or initials of the
person performing the operation or creating the record, as required by 21
CFR 118.10(b)(3). Specifically, during Inspection 4 in Humboldt, IA, rodent
monitoring logs did not have the signature or initials of the person
performing the operation. Your written response dated July 12, 2011,
stated that the Humboldt SE Prevention Program has made the appropriate
correction for the Rodent Control Representative to initial or sign the
monitoring records. We will verify this correction at our next inspection.

This letter is not intended to be an all-inclusive list of your firm’s violations. You
are responsible for ensuring that your shell egg production facility operates in
compliance with all applicable statutes and regulations, including the FFD&C Act,
the PHS Act, and the shell egg regulation. You also have a responsibility to use
procedures to prevent further violations of the applicable statutes and regulations.

You should take prompt action to correct the violations cited in this letter. Failure
to promptly correct these violations may result in FDA taking regulatory action
without further notice, such as seizure, injunction, or the initiation of
administrative enforcement procedures under 21 CFR 118.12(a).

In addition to the above violations, we also have the following comments:

Under 21 CFR 118.8(a), you must conduct testing to detect SE in
environmental samples using the method entitled “Environmental Sampling
and Detection of Salmonella in Poultry Houses,” April 2008, or an equivalent
method in accuracy, precision, and sensitivity in detecting SE. At the time
of these inspections, your SE prevention plan for all five of your farms
required environmental sampling in your high-rise style layer houses of two
egg belts with wet Hydra Sponged in 10 ml Neutral Buffer — Sterile. This
method has not been recognized by FDA as being equivalent to the method
entitled “Environmental Sampling and Detection of Salmonella in Poultry
Houses,” April 2008. We acknowledge that your latest written response
dated July 12, 2011 (Humboldt, IA), states that the revised (July 1, 2011)
version of your SE prevention plan calls for “appropriate FDA-approved
sampling materials for environmental sampling procedures.” If you are
continuing to use a method that differs from the method specified in 21 CFR
118.8(a) and that has not been recognized by FDA as being equivalent to
that method, we encourage you to submit documentation to FDA that will
allow the agency to make a determination regarding equivalency.
Additionally, FDA environmental sampling conducted at Litchfield, MN,
(Inspection 2) indicated the presence of Salmonella enteriditis in poultry
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houses #3 and #8. We acknowledge that, upon being notified of these

findings, you initiated egg testing in keeping with 21 CFR 118.6, the results
of which have all been negative.

Within 15 working days of receipt of this letter, you should notify this office in
writing of the specific steps that you have taken to correct the above violations and
prevent their recurrence. Include an explanation of each step being taken to
correct the violations and prevent their recurrence, as well as copies of related
documentation. If you cannot complete corrective action within 15 working days,
state the reason for the delay and the time within which you will complete the
corrections.

Please send your reply to the Food and Drug Administration, Attention: Tyra S.
Wisecup, Compliance Officer, at the address in the above letterhead. If you have

questions regarding any issues in this letter, please contact Ms. Wisecup at
(612) 758-7114.

Sincerely,

SlgolRunity

Elizabeth A. Waltrip
Acting Director
Minneapolis District

TSW/ccl
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